
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

May 29, 2013 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Steve Ammons 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
9. Approval Of Minutes – May 13, 2013 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business 

10. Ordinance Number 2447 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Purchase Of 
Real Estate Situated At 1105 Mayland Lane  (public hearing) 

New Business 

11. Resolution Number 4451 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Protective Clothing For 
The Fire Department 

12. Resolution Number 4452 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement For Security Services For Municipal Court  

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

13. Resolution Number 4453 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase A 
LiveScan System For The City Of Vestavia Hills Police Department  (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

14. Resolution Number 4454 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Republication Of The City’s Municipal Code  
(public hearing) 



15. Ordinance Number 2448 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Sale Of Real 
Estate More Particularly Described As A Portion Of Vacated Sicard Hollow Right-Of-
Way As Recorded In Book 200808, Page 413, Jefferson County  (public hearing) 

16. Citizens Comments  
17. Executive Session 
18. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MAY 13, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Dep. Finance Director 
      Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Lt. Kevin York, Police Department 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
      Taneisha Young-Tucker, Library Director 
 
 Invocation was given by Danny Wood, Shades Mountain Baptist Church, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• The Mayor announced that the regular meeting of the Vestavia Hills City Council 
scheduled for Monday, May 27, 2013 has been rescheduled for Wednesday, May 
29, 2013 beginning at 5 PM. 

• The Mayor stated that former Fire Chief Bill Towers has passed away.  He stated 
that Chief Towers began with the City as one of the two original firefighters and 
worked his 37 year career with the City of Vestavia Hills Fire Department.  A 
majority of that time he served as the Fire Chief.  He will be missed by everyone 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 2 
 

who knew him.  The Mayor asked that everyone’s thoughts and prayers be with 
the Towers family at this time. 

• Chief St. John announced that funeral services will be held for Chief Towers at 
Southern Heritage, Pelham, Alabama, tomorrow, with visitation beginning at 12 
PM and services at 2 PM. 

• The Mayor welcomed visiting Boy Scouts Dalton and Chase Adair to the 
meeting.  The Adair brothers were visiting from Scout Troop 1 working on a 
citizenship badge. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Ben Goldman gave a short presentation on the status of demolition of 
dilapidated buildings in the City.  Out of six homes that have been designated, one 
was demolished by the City.  The others have been remediated by the owners at 
the request of the City.  Photographs of the properties before and after 
remediation were shown to the Council.  Mr. Goldman recognized the efforts of 
Keith Blanton, Building Official for his hard work in this endeavor. 

• Mr. St. John recognized Lt. Scott Farrell, Carin Mayo, Andrew Russell, Julie 
Harper, Jason Burnett, Betsy Frazer, Mark Hamilton and Leanne Messer for their 
work on the City’s Community Health Fair.  He stated that a lot of work went into 
this Health Fair and it was a tremendous success. 

• Mr. St. John also recognized Carin Mayo and Andrew Russell for their work as 
interns for the City.  Both worked diligently for the City and accomplished several 
projects. 

• Chief Rary gave an update to the Council regarding an arrest which should solve 
several recent burglaries along with vehicle thefts.  Chief Rary urged everyone to 
lock his door when he leaves the house and to lock vehicles whenever they are 
parked. 

• Repairs will begin soon at the Library in the Forest.  Mr. St. John stated the 
repairs have been planned for a while and will require some scaffolding and 
requested everyone to have patience while the repairs take place. 

• The Library is currently opening for extended hours while high school students 
study for final examinations. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mayor Zaragoza presented a proclamation that designated the week of May 5 – 
May 11, 2013 as “Municipal Clerks Week.”  He read the Proclamation and 
presented it to City Clerk Rebecca Leavings. 

• Mr. Ammons thanked Mr. Davis and his Park Staff for their efforts toward a very 
successful soccer and lacrosse season. 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 3 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
 The minutes of the April 22, 2013 (Regular Meeting) and May 2, 2013 (Work 
Session) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the April 22, 2013 

(Regular Meeting) and May 2, 2013 (Work Session) and approve them as 
presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote as 
follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4445 

Resolution Number 4445 – A Resolution Ascertaining, Fixing And Determining The 
Amount Of Assessment To Be Charged As A Lien On The Property 
Known As 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35243; 
Parcel Id# 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0, In The City Of Vestavia Hills As A 
Result Of The City Of Vestavia Hills Ordering The Demolition Of 
The Building On The Property Pursuant To Ordinance No. 2382 
(Public Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4445 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Ben Goldman, Hand Arendall, explained that this Resolution authorizes the Clerk 
to file a lien against the property located at 3363 Mountainside Road which represents the 
charges associated with the abatement of nuisance begun several months ago. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4447 

Resolution Number 4447 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter 
Into A Contract With R&S Food Service Company For The Library 
In The Forest Café 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4447 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Taneisha Young-Tucker stated that bids were invited on two separate occasions 
for a vendor to operate the café at the Library in the Forest.  She stated that no bids were 
received on either occasion.  Following that, a potential vendor approached her about 
operating the café for a test period of 90 days with several ideas on the menu, service, etc.  
She stated that a binding letter of lease has been presented to him and to the City 
Attorney for review.  The Resolution authorizes the execution of that binding letter of 
lease. 
 
 Wallace Sears, owner of R&S Food Services explained the terms of the proposed 
period of time and the terms of the agreement.  He then answered questions from the 
Council and described his ideas for the café. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and finds no problems. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4448 

Resolution Number 4448 – Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus And 
Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4448 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Chief Rary stated that two new vehicles were purchased to replace two older 
vehicles.  This request is to declare surplus and authorize the sale of the two older 
vehicles. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the status of the SRO vehicles. 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 5 
 

 Chief Rary stated that those vehicles have been ordered and should be arriving 
within the new three or four weeks. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4449 

Resolution Number 4449 – A Resolution To Rescind Resolution Number 4410 
Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To Execute An 
Agreement For Architectural Services For A City 
Garage/Maintenance Facility At Wald Park 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4449 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. St. John stated that the Council has opted not to build a new garage 
maintenance facility in Wald Park and this Resolution terminates the agreement with the 
architect designing the site. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked if this will terminate the agreement to this point. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the architect will be paid only for the services he has been 
authorized to perform as of this termination date. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2444 

Ordinance Number 2444 – An Ordinance To Rescind Ordinance Number 2426  
Authorizing And Directing The Sale Of Real Estate Situated At 1112 
Montgomery Highway 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2444 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. St. John stated that this Resolution terminates an existing contract for the sale 
of the old library and allows the earnest money to be returned to the potential purchaser. 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 6 
 

 Mr. Boone stated that he understands there may be other contracts coming 
forward on this property and recommended that the same contract be used for each 
purchaser. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4450 

Resolution Number 4450 – A Resolution Directing The City Manager To Initiate A 
Consumer’s Use Tax Refund To Charter Communications LP 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4450 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. St. John stated that the Council has discussed this at length in work sessions 
and has determined that this refund is to be paid at Charter’s request. 
 
 Mr. Turner explained the refund request and why it has been determined to be due 
and payable. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2446 

Ordinance Number 2446 – General Obligation Warrants (Federally Taxable – 
Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds – Direct Pay) Series 2013 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2446 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 7 
 

 Heyward Hosch, Maynard Cooper and Gale, was present in regard to this request. 
He explained the terms of the Warrant issue and indicated that the Council has studied 
this request in several previous work sessions. 
 
 Chris Stevens, Sterne Agee, gave details of the Warrant issue including the term 
and max interest rate of the project. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of May 
29, 2013 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2447 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The 
Purchase Of Real Estate Situated At 1105 Mayland Lane 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
Chris Freeman, 512 Eastwood Place, asked about the procedure for reporting 

vacant properties.  He also expressed concern over the due process for the sale of the City 
Hall property adjacent to his home.  He asked about the procedure for the sale and any 
details involved with it. 

 
Mr. Garrison explained the zoning procedure which would have to be completed 

before anything was developed on the property and Mr. Boone gave details of the process 
of the sale. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce.  Meeting adjourned at 6:20 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 13, 2013, 

Page 8 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2447 
Page 1 

 

 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2447 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
PURCHASING AND CLOSING OF THE SALE OF REAL ESTATE 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2447 is considered, approved, enacted and 

adopted on this the 29th day of May, 2013. 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, municipalities in Alabama have the legal authority to acquire real 

estate by purchase pursuant to Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) finds and determines that the purchase by 

the City of the hereinafter described real property (the “Property”) will promote the 

health, safety and general welfare of the City; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 “Contracts entered into by a municipality shall be in writing, 
signed and executed in the name of the city or town by the officers 
authorized to make the same and by the party contracting.  In cases not 
otherwise directed by law or ordinance, such contracts shall be entered 
into and executed by the mayor in the name of the city or town and all 
obligations for the payment of money by the municipality, except for 
bonds and interest coupons, shall be attested by the clerk.  This section 
shall not be construed to cover purchases for the ordinary needs of the 
municipality;” and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. PROMOTION OF PUBLIC WELFARE:  The City Council (the “City 

Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) 

finds and determines that the purchase by the City of the hereinafter described real 

property and improvements located at 1105 Mayland Lane (the “Property”) will promote 

the health, safety and general welfare of the City. 



Ordinance Number 2447 
Page 2 

 

 2

 2. CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE:  The purchasing 

and closing of the sale of the Property shall be completed all in accordance with the 

terms, provisions, conditions and limitations of a written Real Estate Sales Contract (the 

“Contract”) ultimately considered for acceptance and approval by the City Council at this 

regularly scheduled public meeting. 

 3. CONTRACT:  A copy of the proposed contract is attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2447 as though written fully therein. 

 9. POSTING OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2447:  If the City Council 

approves, enacts and adopts Ordinance Number 2447, as amended, then in such event, 

said Ordinance shall be posted in three (3) public places within the City as required by 

Title 11-45-8(b)(1), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 10. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2447:  Ordinance 

Number 2447 shall become effective five (5) days after posting in accordance with Title 

11-45-8(3), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 11. CLOSING DATE:  The Real Estate Sales Contract shall be closed after 

the effective date of Ordinance Number 2447 on a date mutually agreed upon by Seller 

and Purchaser. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, this the 29th day of May, 

2013. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2447 
Page 3 

 

 3

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2447 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 29th day of May, 2013 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 

1 
1/2467082.2 

  May __, 2013  
 
GENERAL SALES CONTRACT the Undersigned Purchaser(s)     City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama       , whose address is 513 
Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216, Attention:  Mr. Jim St. John, Interim City Manager, hereby agrees to 
purchase and the Undersigned Seller____________________________.                                         whose address 
is_________________________________________________, hereby agrees to sell the following described real estate, together 
with all improvements, shrubbery, plantings, fixtures and appurtenances, situated in the City of     Vestavia              County of     
Jefferson         , Alabama, on the terms stated below:  
Address  1105 Mayland Lane, Vestavia Hills, AL 35216                           and described as:   
 
 See Attached Exhibit A (collectively, the “Property”). 
  
1. THE PURCHASE PRICE: shall be    $825,000.00 which shall be payable as follows: 
   
 Earnest Money (the “Earnest Money”) .................................................. $  10,000.00 
 
 Cash on closing this sale  ................................................................. $  815,000.00 
 
 Total ........................................................................................................... $ 825,000.00  
 
2. TITLE INSURANCE: The Purchaser shall obtain  within 14   days after the Effective Date a standard owner’s title insurance 
commitment for the issuance of an owner’s title insurance policy, issued by a company qualified to insure titles in Alabama in the 
amount of the purchase price, showing Seller has fee simple title to the Property, together with the documents relating to 
exceptions to title referred to therein (“Title Commitment”). Purchaser shall notify Seller of any unacceptable liens, 
encumbrances, restrictions, or other defects or matters ("Title Objections") on or before the expiration of the Inspection Period; 
provided, however, that Purchaser shall not be required to provide any written notice of any Existing Mortgages and 
Subsequently-Created Title Matters, as herein defined, and Seller shall, at Seller’s sole cost and expense, remove or eliminate 
on or prior to the closing, any and all Existing Mortgages and Subsequently-Created Title Matters.  As used herein, the term 
“Existing Mortgages and Subsequently-Created Title Matters” means and refers to all mortgages, liens (other than the lien for ad 
valorem taxes not yet due), judgments or other encumbrances encumbering the Property which can be removed or eliminated by 
the payment of a fixed sum of money and any matters of title created or allowed to be created by Seller on the Property at any 
time after the effective date of the owner’s title insurance commitment delivered to Purchaser.  Except for any Existing Mortgages 
and Subsequently-Created Title Matters, in the event that Purchaser fails to notify Seller of any Title Objections within said time 
period, Purchaser shall be deemed to have accepted such title and all matters contained therein shall be deemed to be 
“Permitted Encumbrances”. In the event that Purchaser does provide Title Objections within said time period, within five (5) days 
following Purchaser’s delivery of the Title Objections, Seller shall elect (by written notice to Purchaser) to cure or decline to 
correct such Title Objections. If Seller advises Purchaser that Seller is unwilling or unable to correct any or all Title Objections or 
if Seller fails to respond, within five (5) days thereafter, Purchaser may elect to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice 
to Seller, at which time the Earnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser. In the event that Purchaser fails to provide such notice 
during such time, Purchaser shall be deemed to have accepted such title and such matters shall be deemed to be “Permitted 
Encumbrances”. At closing, Purchaser shall pay for the owner’s title insurance policy (“Owner’s Policy”) to be issued by the Title 
Company pursuant to the Title Commitment which shall contain references to the Permitted Encumbrances. Purchaser shall also 
pay for any special endorsements required by Purchaser or Purchaser’s lender. 
3. PRORATIONS:  NONE.  All closing costs (other than Seller’s attorneys’ fees, if any, shall be paid by Purchaser). 
4. CLOSING & POSSESSION DATES:  The sale shall be closed and the deed delivered (the “closing”) at 10:00 a.m. Central 
Daylight Savings Time on    July 9, 2013  (the “Closing Date”) except the Seller shall have a reasonable length of time within 
which to perfect title or cure defects in the title to the said property.  Possession, subject to any existing leases on the property, is to 
be given on delivery of the deed unless otherwise agreed to herein.  
5. CONVEYANCE:  The Seller agrees to convey said Property to the Purchaser by    Statutory     warranty deed free of 
all encumbrances, except for mineral and mining rights not owned by Seller and the “Permitted Encumbrances” and except as 
otherwise herein set out. Seller and Purchaser agree that any encumbrances not herein excepted or assumed may be cleared at the 
time of closing from sales proceeds. 
6. CONDITION OF PROPERTY: Property is being sold in its present “as is” condition, including ordinary wear and tear to the 
closing date. Seller makes no representations or warranties regarding the condition of the Property except to the extent 
expressly and specifically set forth herein. 



 

2 
1/2467082.2 

7. SELLER WARRANTS Seller warrants that unless excepted herein, Seller has not received notification from any lawful 
authority regarding any assessments, pending public improvements, repairs, replacements, or alterations to the Property that 
have not been satisfactorily made. Seller warrants that Owner is the current fee owner of the Property. Seller also represents 
that, to the best of its knowledge, except as may otherwise be expressly disclosed herein, Seller has not released or disposed of 
any hazardous or toxic waste, substance or material, including without limitation any asbestos or any oil or pesticides 
(collectively, “Hazardous Substances”), on or about the Property; has not disposed of or arranged for the disposition of any 
Hazardous Substances from the Property except in compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws; and no Hazardous 
Substances exist on the Property or about the Property that threaten the Property. Seller makes no warranty that the Property is 
suitable for any particular purpose, nor that the Property is in compliance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. THESE WARRANTIES SHALL SURVIVE THE DELIVERY OF THE DEED. 
8. EARNEST MONEY & PURCHASER'S DEFAULT:  The Seller hereby authorizes  Land Title Company of Alabama  (the 
“Escrow Holder”) to hold the earnest money in trust for the Seller in its general non-interest bearing escrow account, pending the 
fulfillment of this Contract. In the event the Purchaser fails to carry out and perform the terms of this agreement, then, as the sole 
and exclusive remedy hereunder to Seller, the Earnest Money shall be forfeited as liquidated damages. Said Earnest Money so 
forfeited shall be paid to Seller.  If this Contract does not close and the Earnest Money is to be turned over to Seller or refunded to 
Purchaser pursuant to this Contract, Seller and Purchaser agree to execute a written release to the Escrow Holder affirming the 
proper disposition of the Earnest Money.  If either party unreasonably refuses or fails to tender such written release, and in 
subsequent proceedings it is ruled the Earnest Money does not belong to them, then they shall be liable for all fees and 
expenses, including attorney fees, incurred by Escrow Holder and/or the other party in connection with their efforts to effect the 
proper disposition of the Earnest Money.  In the event of a dispute between Seller and Purchaser with respect to the Earnest 
Money, the Escrow Holder shall be entitled to tender into the registry or custody of any court of competent jurisdiction the Earnest 
Money, together with such legal proceedings as it deems appropriate, and therefore to be discharged from all further duties under 
this Agreement.  Escrow Holder shall be entitled to deduct or recover from the Earnest Money its court costs, reasonable attorney 
fees and other out-of-pocket expenses related to this interpleader.  Seller and Purchaser agree to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Escrow Holder against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and expenses, including without limitation, attorney's fees and 
expenses, incurred by it in connection with its acceptance of this appointment as Escrow Holder. Purchaser and Seller agree that 
"Escrow Holder" shall not be required to deposit Purchaser's earnest money check until this Contract has been accepted and signed 
by all parties. If Purchaser’s Earnest Money check is returned by a financial institution as unpaid, Seller shall have the right to void 
this Agreement and neither party shall have any further obligation to the other. 
9. SELECTION OF ATTORNEY: Each party shall be responsible for its own attorneys’ fees and expenses. 
10. SURVEY: Purchaser at its expense may elect to obtain a current survey.  In the event a current survey is obtained, all 
easements and other matters shown on the survey shall be Permitted Encumbrances unless objected to in writing prior to the 
end of the Review Period. If no survey is obtained, any easements and other matters that would be disclosed by a current and 
accurate survey shall be Permitted Encumbrances.  
11. ARBITRATION: Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach hereof, shall be settled 
by arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Commercial Arbitration Rules and 
judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  Such arbitration shall 
be held in Birmingham, Alabama.  Any party may, without any inconsistency with this Agreement, seek from a court any interim 
or provisional relief that is necessary to protect the rights of property of such party, pending the establishment of the arbitral 
tribunal (or pending the arbitral tribunal's determination of the merits of the controversy).  Such arbitration and determination shall 
be final and binding on the parties, and the parties agree to abide by the arbitration findings.  Judgment may be entered upon 
such determination and award in any court having jurisdiction thereof, and the parties agree that no appeals shall be taken there 
from.  The arbitrator shall award to the prevailing party, if any, as determined by the arbitrator, all of its costs and fees in 
connection with such arbitration, including the arbitrator's fees, administrative fees, travel expenses, out-of-pocket expenses, 
court costs, witness fees and attorney's fees. 
12. INSURANCE AND RISK OF LOSS:  The Seller will keep in force (or will require that Owner keep in force) sufficient hazard 
insurance on the property to protect all interests until sale is closed and the deed delivered. If the Property is destroyed or 
materially damaged between the date hereof and the closing, and Seller is unable or unwilling to restore it to its previous condition 
prior to closing, Purchaser shall have the option of canceling this Agreement and receiving a full refund of the Earnest Money or 
accepting the Property in its then condition.  If Purchaser elects to accept the Property in its damaged condition, any insurance 
proceeds (for damage to structures, only) otherwise payable to Seller (or Owner) by reason of such damage shall be applied to the 
balance of the purchase price or otherwise be payable to Purchaser. 
13. FOREIGN INVESTMENT IN REAL PROPERTY TAX ACT (FIRPTA):  In the closing of this transaction, Seller and 
Purchaser shall comply with the FIRPTA and the regulations promulgated thereunder by the IRS. 



 

3 
1/2467082.2 

14. FACSIMILE AND COUNTERPART SIGNATURES:  This agreement may be executed in counterparts and by either party or by 
both parties by telecopy, electronic scanned email documents or facsimile and shall be binding upon the party so executing it upon 
receipt by the other party of the signature.  
15. NOTICE: All notices, demands and/or consents provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 
have been served on the date mailed by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage 
prepaid. All such notices and communications shall be addressed to the parties hereto at the respective addresses set forth at 
page 1 hereof, or at such other addresses as either may specify to the other in writing. If the parties fax number or email 
addresses are available notice shall be deemed to have been served when sent by one of these methods. 
16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Purchaser and Seller regarding the 
Property, and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations and agreements between Purchaser and Seller, whether oral or 
written. Neither Purchaser nor Seller shall be bound by any understanding, agreement, promise, or representation concerning 
the Property, expressed or implied, not specified herein. Any further changes or modifications to this Agreement must be in 
writing and signed by the parties hereto.  
17. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS set forth on any attached Addendum, signed and dated by all parties, are hereby made a part 
of this Contract.  
18. GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Alabama, without regard to principles governing conflicts of law, except that it is agreed that the provisions of this Agreement 
relating to arbitration or disputes hereunder shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. § 1 et seq., and, to the 
extent not in conflict with the Federal Arbitration Act, by the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association. 
19. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: The Parties agree that time is of the essence of this Agreement. 
20. “EFFECTIVE DATE” OF CONTRACT:  THE “EFFECTIVE DATE” SHALL BE THE DATE ON WHICH THE SECOND 
PARTY EXECUTES THIS CONTRACT AS SHOWN ON THE SIGNATURE PAGE OR, IF THE CONTRACT INCLUDES 
SUBSEQUENT CHANGES SIGNED OR INITIALED AND DATED BY THE PARTIES, THE LATEST SUCH CHANGE AS SO 
SIGNED OR INITIALED AND DATED. 
 
THIS IS INTENDED TO BE A LEGALLY BINDING CONTRACT. IF YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THE LEGAL EFFECT OF ANY 
PART OF THIS CONTRACT, SEEK LEGAL ADVICE BEFORE SIGNING. 
 
 
       SELLER: 
 
               
 
 
   
                                                               By:         
Witness to Seller’s Signature(s)    Its:          
       Date of Execution:                       
         
                                           
 
       PURCHASER: 
 
       CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
                                                               By:                                                                                 
Witness to Purchaser's Signature(s)   Its:          
       Date of Execution:          
 
 
                                                               By:                                                                                 
Witness to Purchaser's Signature(s)   Its:          
       Date of Execution:          
 
 



 

4 
1/2467082.2 

Receipt is hereby acknowledged of the earnest money as hereinabove set forth           CASH                 CHECK    
 
Firm: LAND TITLE COMPANY OF ALABAMA 
                                                               
By:                                                                               
Its:        



 

5 
1/2467082.2 

 
ADDENDUM 

 
This Addendum (this “Addendum”) shall supersede and override any and all language in the original General 
Sales Contract (the “General Sales Contract”) dated as of the date of this Addendum between the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“Purchaser”) and _______________________ (“Seller”) regarding the subject matter 
contained herein.  This Addendum in its entirety is hereby made a part of this General Sales Contract. 
Capitalized terms not otherwise expressly defined herein shall have the same meanings as set forth in the 
General Sales Contract. 
 

1. (a) During the period of time beginning on the Effective Date and ending at 5:00 p.m. Central 
Standard/Daylight Savings Time on June 2, 2013 (the “Inspection Period”), Purchaser, Purchaser's 
authorized agents and employees, as well as others authorized by Purchaser, shall have the right, at 
Purchaser's sole cost and expense, but subject to the rights of all existing tenants of the Seller’s Property, 
as hereinafter defined, to enter upon the Property and conduct such tests, evaluations, inspections, 
investigations and reviews of the Property (collectively, the “Inspections”) as Purchaser may desire.  The 
Inspections may include, without limitation, valuating and/or conducting all architectural, engineering, 
topographical, geological, survey, floodway, soil, surface, subsurface, environmental, storm water drainage, 
traffic, utility availability, zoning and subdivision inquiries and otherwise conducting and performing all other 
tests and evaluations affecting the Property as Purchaser may require.  Purchaser covenants and agrees to 
promptly repair any physical damage to the Property caused by, arising out of or resulting from any of the 
Inspections.  Purchaser does hereby indemnify, agree to defend and hold Seller (and Owner) harmless from 
and against any and all claims, costs, expenses and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys' fees and 
expenses suffered, paid or incurred by Seller (or Owner) arising out of or by virtue of (i) any injury or 
damage to person (including death) or property caused by any act or omission of Purchaser, its agents, 
employees, representatives or contractors in conducting or performing any of the Inspections, (ii) 
Purchaser's failure to pay all bills, invoices, costs and other charges relating to the Inspections and (iii) 
Purchaser’s failure to repair and replace any damage to the Property caused by, resulting from or arising out 
of any of the Inspections.  The indemnification obligations of Purchaser set forth herein shall survive the 
closing or the termination and cancellation of this Agreement. 
 
(b) If, at any time on or before the expiration of the Inspection Period, Purchaser determines, in its sole 
and absolute discretion, that the results or findings of any of the Inspections or any other matters or things 
relating to the Property or Purchaser’s acquisition of the Property for Purchaser’s intended use are 
unacceptable to Purchaser, then Purchaser shall have the unqualified right, at its option, to cancel and 
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Seller given at any time on or before the expiration of the 
Inspection Period in which event the Earnest Money shall be promptly returned to Purchaser, this 
Agreement shall be deemed canceled and terminated and, except for the indemnification obligations of 
Purchaser set forth in Paragraph 1(a) above, neither party shall have any further obligation or liability to the 
other hereunder.   
 

2. Notwithstanding anything provided to the contrary in the General Sales Contract, Purchaser’s obligations to 
close the transaction contemplated by the General Sales Contract and this Addendum shall be subject to 
and conditioned upon Purchaser acquiring on or before the Closing Date that certain real property situated 
adjacent to the Property having a street address of 1034 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
35216 which was formerly the location of a “Food World” grocery store (the “Adjacent Property”).  If, for any 
reason, Purchaser has not purchased and acquired the Adjacent Property from Vestavia Plaza LLC on or 
before the Closing Date set forth in this General Sales Contract or if Purchaser elects to cancel and 
terminate the prior contract to purchase the Adjacent Property at any time on or before the Closing Date, 



 

6 
1/2467082.2 

then in either event, Purchaser shall have the right to cancel and terminate the General Sales Contract in 
which event the Earnest Money shall be refunded to Purchaser, the General Sales Contract shall be 
deemed cancelled and terminated and, except for the indemnification obligations of Purchaser set forth in 
Paragraph 2(a) of this Addendum, neither party shall have any further obligation or liability to the other 
hereunder. 
 

3. The purchase and sale transaction contemplated by the General Sales Contract does not include any 
personal property situated within the building located on the Property.  For a four (4) month period following 
the closing, Seller shall have the right, at Seller’s expense, to enter upon the Property and remove any 
personal property from the Property.  After such four (4) month period, all personal property remaining in 
said building shall be deemed to have been abandoned by Seller and Purchaser may dispose of the same 
in any manner determined by Purchaser. 
 

4. To the extent the closing occurs, Purchaser agrees to erect and maintain as part of the improvements to be 
constructed on the Property by Purchaser, a memorial sign or plaque which provides information concerning 
the prior use of the Property as Joe’s Ranch House and its owner, Joe Zarzaur, and his family and their 
contributions to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  
 

5. Seller and Purchaser represent and warrant to each other that they have not dealt with any broker or sales 
agent in connection with this transaction.  Seller and Purchaser each hereby agree to indemnify, defend and 
hold the other harmless from and against any and all claims, suits, liabilities, judgments and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, suffered, paid or incurred by the other party as a result 
of any claim or claims for brokerage commissions, finder’s fees or other compensation asserted by any 
person, firm or corporation in connection with the execution of the General Sales Contract and the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the General Sales Contract.   

 
 

Seller: 
 
        __________________________________. 
 
 
        By:        
Date        Its:         
 
 
 

Purchaser: 
 

        CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
        By:        
Date        Its:        
 
 
 
        By:        
Date        Its:        



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4451 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 
FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 21, 2013, bids were received and publicly read for Fire Department 

protective clothing with two bids received; and 

 WHEREAS, the bids were reviewed by Deputy Chief Lynn Bonner and, in a 

memorandum to Fire Chief St. John dated May 22, 2013, Chief Bonner recommended the 

acceptance of the bid package submitted by North American Fire Equipment Company 

(NAFECO) in the amount of $1,692.30 per protective clothing ensemble.  A copy of said 

memorandum is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4451 as though 

written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

bid package submitted by NAFECO as described in the attached memorandum. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by NAFECO is hereby accepted in the amount of $1,692.30 

per protective clothing ensemble; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4451 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 29th day of May, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





RESOLUTION NUMBER 4452 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR SECURITY SERVICES FOR 
MUNICIPAL COURT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with 

Security Engineers, Inc. (“SEI”) to provide security services for Municipal Court.  A 

copy of said agreement and addenda is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4452 as though written fully therein; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4452 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 29th day of May, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4453 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE A LIVESCAN SYSTEM FOR THE VESTAVIA HILLS 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is authorized to purchase a LiveScan System for the Vestavia Hills 

Police Department in an amount not to exceed $15,816.00; and 

2. The expense of the above-described LiveScan System shall be reimbursed to the City 

from an approved ADECA grant in the amount of $15,816.00; and  

3. This Resolution Number 4453 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 29th day of May, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 







RESOLUTION NUMBER 4454 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT FOR 
REPUBLICATION OF THE CITY’S MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with Municipal Code Corporation (“Municode”) for republication of the City’s Code and 

Zoning Ordinance in an amount not to exceed $14,990.   

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4454 as if written fully therein; and 

3. The expense of the above-described agreement shall be spread over two fiscal years 

beginning with a $7,000 deposit to be remitted upon execution of the agreement and the 

remainder to be due and payable following completion and/or after October 1, 2013; and  

4. This Resolution Number 4454 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: May 23, 2013 
 
TO:  Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
 
FROM: Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
 
RE:  Republication of City Code and Zoning Ordinance 
 
 Attached you will find a copy of a proposed agreement with Municipal Code Corporation 
(“Municode”) for republication of the City’s code of ordinances.  This agreement proposes two 
options:  (1) republication of the City’s Code; and (2) republication of the City’s Code and 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 I am requesting this to be placed on the City Council agenda as a first read on 
Wednesday, May 29, 2013 for Option 2 which includes the City’s Zoning Code.  The Zoning 
Code has never been included in the City’s Code and this makes it difficult for the general public 
to locate the Code in order to answer questions concerning zoning and permitted uses of 
property.  As this Department develops a GIS zoning map, the intent is to place this zoning map 
online to provide complete access to zoning information.  The inclusion of the Zoning Code is an 
additional $4,750 expense but I believe it will make it easier for the general public to locate and 
access this information. 
 
 The agreement allows the City to spread the $14,990 cost over 2 fiscal years.  The $7,000 
required deposit is within the approved budget for the current fiscal year and the remainder will 
need to be committed by the City Council for the next fiscal year.  
 
 Republication was last completed in 2008 and currently there are 78 Ordinances held in 
NOW which need to be incorporated into the City’s Code.  The expense of holding so many 
Ordinances within the NOW internet based storage currently will cost the City approximately 
$6,000 this next year to continue to hold these ordinances.  This will clear that NOW expense 
and bring the City’s Code back up to date.   
 
 Please let me know if you need any other information. 
 

Reply 
 























Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER_2448 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE 
OF REAL ESTATE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A 
PORTION OF VACATED SICARD HOLLOW RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AS RECORDED IN BOOK 200808, PAGE 413, JEFFERSON 
COUNTY. 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2448 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, declares municipalities 

corporate and gives them the power to contract and be contracted with; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-56, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall have the management and control of the finances and all of the property, 

real and personal, belonging to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council may, by ordinance to be entered on its minutes, direct the disposal of any real 

property not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the mayor to make title 

thereto, and a conveyance made by the mayor in accordance with such ordinance invests 

the grantee with the title of the municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-28, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Manager shall be the head of the administrative branch of the government of the City of 

Vestavia Hills and shall be responsible to the City Council for the proper administration 

of all municipal affairs; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-48, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all contracts 

for the City of Vestavia Hills shall be made and approved by ordinance and signed in the 

name of the City of Vestavia Hills by the Mayor and countersigned by the City Manager; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that if an 

ordinance is published by posting, then in such event said ordinance shall take effect five 

days thereafter; and 



Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 2 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) is the owner of real 

property situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, which said 

real estate shall hereinafter be referred to as the “subject property” and is more 

particularly described as follows: 

A part of the right of way of Sicard Hollow Road vacated by Book LR 
200808 Pg 413, as recorded in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, 
Alabama.  Being a part of the vacated right to way lying in the NE ¼ of 
the NE ¼ of Section 18 Township 18 South, Range 1 West and being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in the NE ¼ of Section 18, Township 18 South, 
Range 1, West Jefferson County Alabama being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
Commence at the NE corner of said Section 18 and run south 00 degrees 
42 minutes 50 seconds East along the east line thereof for a distance of 
747.23 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING of said parcel, said point also 
being on a curve turning to the left, said curve having a radius of 612.96 
feet, a central angle of 11 degrees 13 minutes 14 seconds, a chord bearing 
of South 51 degrees 57 minutes 12 seconds West, and a chord length of 
119.85 feet; thence run in a Southwesterly direction along said arc for a 
distance of 120.04 feet; thence run South 46 degrees 19 minutes 48 
seconds West for a distance of 208.07 feet to the point of beginning of a 
curve to the right having a radius of 278.31 feet, a central angle of 43 
degrees 19 minutes 40 seconds, a chord bearing of South 67 degrees 59 
minutes 19 seconds West, and a chord length of 205.48 feet; thence run in 
a Southwesterly direction along the arc of said curve for a distance of 
210.46 feet; thence run South 89 degrees 38 minutes 30 seconds West for 
a distance of 74.56 feet to a point on a curve turning to the left having a 
radius of 278.73 feet, a central angle of 37 degrees 55 minutes 57 seconds, 
a chord bearing of South 70 degrees 40 minutes 57 seconds West, and a 
chord length of 181.18 feet; thence run in a Southwesterly direction along 
the arc of said curve for a distance of 184.53 feet; thence run North 89 
degrees 49 minutes 08 seconds East for a distance of 317.36 feet to the 
currently existing Northeasterly right of way of Sicard Hollow Road; 
thence run North 47 degrees 22 minutes 58 seconds East along said right 
of way for a distance of 500 feet, more or less, to the Easterly line of said 
Section 18; thence turn left and run North 00 degrees 42 minutes 50 
seconds West along said Easterly line of Section 18 to the point of 
beginning and end of this parcel; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Jordy Henson, Managing Member of HCI Holdings LLC, an 

Alabama limited liability corporation, has requested that the City declare said property as 



Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 3 

 
surplus and offer for sale to Harris Doyle Homes, Inc., for development of a subdivision; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that it is willing to accept the offer by 

Harris Doyle Homes, Inc.; for an amount equivalent to $2,400 with the purchaser paying 

all costs associated with closing of said property; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determines that the subject property is not needed for municipal or public purposes; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The subject property is found and determined to not be needed for public 

or municipal purposes by the City of Vestavia Hills and is hereby declared as surplus 

property all in accordance with the requirements of Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

 2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver all documents required to close said sale for and on behalf of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3. A copy of said Real Estate closing documents along with said payment 

will be submitted upon closing and kept on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for inspection by members of the general public. 

 4. Upon approval, adoption and enactment of this Ordinance Number 2448 

the Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all legal 

action necessary to close the sale of the subject property all in accordance with the terms, 

provisions and conditions previously described. 

 5. This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

 6. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 



Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 4 

 
 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 10th day of June, 

2013. 

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
 
 
      By_________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
       
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2448 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 10th day of June, 2013 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
















	2013_0529CC_A
	2013_0513CC_M
	Ordinance 2447

	Resolution 4451
	Resolution 4452
	Resolution 4453

	Resolution 4454

	Ordinance 2448




